
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
The next meeting of the LICENSING Committee will be held at 6.30 pm on TUESDAY, 
12 APRIL 2022 in the Council Chamber. 
 
I do hope you can be there. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

2.   TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS 
MEETING 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, 
OTHER REGISTRABLE AND NON REGISTRABLE 
INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable 
interest in respect of matters contained in the agenda. 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

 

ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 

5.   WHALLEY CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT - 
CONSIDERATION OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
AND RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
 

(Pages 7 - 10) 

 Report of Chief Executive enclosed. 
 

 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

6.   ALCOHOL LICENSING UPDATE 
 

(Pages 11 - 14) 

 Report of Chief Executive enclosed. 
 

 

7.   TAXI LICENSING UPDATE 
 

(Pages 15 - 36) 

 Report of Chief Executive enclosed. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

8.   UPDATE ON WHALLEY NIGHT TIME ECONOMY 
 

(Pages 37 - 50) 

 Report of Chief Executive enclosed. 
 

 

9.   MINUTES OF RV EVENT SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP - 3 
FEBRUARY 2022 
 

(Pages 51 - 52) 

 Copy enclosed. 
 

 

10.   REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE 
BODIES 
 

 

 None. 
 

 

11.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 None. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Electronic agendas sent to members of Licensing – Councillor Jan Alcock JP (Chair), 
Councillor Richard Bennett (Vice-Chair), Councillor Ian Brown, Councillor Stella 
Brunskill JP, Councillor Steve Farmer, Councillor Gaynor Hibbert, Councillor Simon 
Hore, Councillor Angeline Humphreys, Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor Donna 
O'Rourke, Councillor Simon O'Rourke, Councillor Sarah Rainford, Councillor James 
(Jim) Rogerson, Councillor Gary Scott and Councillor Robin Walsh. 
 
 
 
Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk  

mailto:committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk


 

 
 

Minutes of Licensing 
 
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, 1 February 2022, starting at  6.30 pm 
Present:  Councillor R Bennett 
 
Councillors: 
 
R Bennett 
I Brown 
S Brunskill 
S Farmer 
R Newmark 
 

D O'Rourke 
S O'Rourke 
J Rogerson 
G Scott 
 

 
In attendance: Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Solicitor 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors B Berryman and G Mirfin  
 

635 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for the meeting were received from Councillors J Alcock, G Hibbert, S 
Hore, A Humphreys, S Rainford and R Walsh. 
 

636 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2021 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

637 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests. 
 

638 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
The Chairman welcomed 2 members of the Whalley residents action group, and M 
Peplow, Green Party representative to speak on agenda item 5 – Renewal of Whalley 
Cumulative Impact Assessment – Approval of Draft for Consultation – who all urged 
committee to approve the renewal of the Whalley cumulative impact assessment for 
consultation. 
 

639 RENEWAL OF WHALLEY CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT - APPROVAL OF 
DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report seeking committee’s approval of the draft 
Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) for Whalley prior to formal consultation. If 
approved, it would form part of the Council’s Licensing Policy. 

 
The Solicitor reminded members that a CIA expires after 3 years and as such the 
current one expires in April 2022. Following the decision of committee to progress 
renewal of the CIA for Whalley, information was sought to form the evidence base 
necessary to justify the assessment. 
 
The draft CIA was attached to the report for members to consider. The Solicitor 
highlighted evidence relating to crime and disorder incidents, the responses from 
local residents, together with the evidence from the records of Environmental Health 
and Enforcement Officers, particularly relating to the prevention of public nuisance. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

 
He reminded members that the introduction of a CIA would not be retrospective, 
would not automatically have effect in that responsible authorities or other interested 
parties would still have to make representations in relation to each application, but 
that it would create a rebuttable presumption of refusal of applications for new 
premises licences and club certificates and variation of such licences and certificates 
but would still require each application to be considered on its merits. 
 
The Solicitor outlined the scope of the proposed CIA and the process for including it 
in the Council’s Licensing Policy. 
 
Councillor G Mirfin was given permission to speak on this item and referred to the 
Council being a responsible authority and the procedural separation required between 
those officers representing an authority in its capacity as responsible authority and 
those who would advise the Committee or Sub-Committee on applications to review 
licences. 
 
Members discussed the situations specific to Whalley and the need to help those 
residents who were experiencing antisocial behaviour, particularly with the late night-
time economy. They felt that more guidance and help from the Police was required 
and that action should be taken against any licensees who were not complying with 
regulations.  
 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services gave members an update on the work of 
the enforcement officers and reminded them that reviews of licences were a statutory 
process.  
 
Members asked for a report on what actions could be taken alongside having the CIA. 
 
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
 

1. Approve the draft Cumulative Impact Assessment contained in the report to 
form the basis of consultation as required by the Act. 

 
2. Request a report from officers on the actions/measures that could be taken 

now to alleviate the problems being experienced by residents of Whalley. 
 

640 PLATES ON HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing committee of a change to the 
information displayed on the plates fixed to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
vehicles. 

 
The Town and Police Clauses Act 1847 and Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 stipulate a statutory requirement to stipulate the number of 
persons who can be carried in the vehicle. The rest of the information contained on 
the plate is at the discretion of the Council. 
 
Currently, the plates on vehicles licensed by the Council include details of the type of 
licence, the licence number, the vehicle registration number, vehicle type, the expiry 
date and the number of passengers that the vehicle is licensed to carry.  
 
He informed committee that if the expiry date was not included then the plate could 
last for many years. It was therefore intended that the plates be altered by removal of 
the information on the renewal date, and that officers continue to monitor the 
impending expiry date of licences and should the renewal application not be received 
than steps would be taken to recover and remove the plate. 

Page 4



 

 
 

 
641 UPDATE ON THE TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES (SAFEGUARDING AND 

ROAD SAFETY) BILL  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing committee of the progress of a 
Private Member’s Bill seeking to improve the safety of taxi passengers. 

 
The Private Member’s Bill introduced on 16 June 2021 by Perter Gibson MP, would 
mandate authorities to record taxi licence refusals, revocations and suspensions on a 
national database, and authorities would be required to consult that database before 
determining an application for a driver’s licence. This would address the problem of a 
driver obtaining a licence from another authority having had one revoked in one 
authority for wrongdoing. It would also allow local authority enforcement teams to 
report instances of wrongdoing by drivers to the authority by which the offender is 
licensed. 
 
Following the debate in the Commons on 21 January 2022 the Bill had progressed to 
the House of Lords where it awaited its second reading. 
 

642 COMPLIANCE CHECKS ON OFF-LICENCES  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing committee of the outcome of visits 
to off-licences in the Ribble Valley to monitor their compliance with legislation. 

 
Following the appointment of 2 full time planning and licensing enforcement officers, it 
had been possible to carry out further compliance checks at licensed premises. This 
was to establish their levels of compliance and to remind them of the requirements of 
their licences, including staff training, Check 25 and Challenge posters, and to ensure 
that the premises licence was current, correct and on display. 
 
Visits had been carried out to 25 premises, and although the majority checked were 
of a satisfactory standard, three premises were requested to display their licence, and 
some others needed to make minor changes to their licence. One had engaged a 
licensing company to audit and manage staff training and three had been advised of 
apparent gaps in their training and recording systems. These premises would be 
revisited at a later date.    
 
The visits were generally welcomed by the premises licence holders. 
 

643 MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 7 DECEMBER 2021  
 
Committee received the minutes of the Licensing sub-committee held on 7 December 
2021. 
 

644 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies. 
 

645 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
There were no items under this heading. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.15 pm 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen 
Heap olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                     
 
meeting date: TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2022 
title: WHALLEY CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT – CONSIDERATION 
 OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES AND RECOMMENDATION TO 
 COUNCIL 
submitted by: MARSHAL SCOTT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee about the responses received to the Council’s consultation about 

renewal of the Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) for Whalley, and to seek 
Committee support for progressing the CIA. 

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

 Community Objectives – } 
 

 Corporate Priorities – } 
 

 Other Considerations – } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 This matter has been considered by Committee on three previous occasions as 

follows: 
 

 15 June 2021 – Committee approved informal consultation with the community and 
local licensees on the renewal of the CIA for Whalley. 
 

 2 November 2022 – Committee considered the responses received as a result of 
the informal consultation and decided to progress a Cumulative Impact 
Assessment by seeking and collating an evidence base to form the basis of formal 
consultation. 

 

 1 February 2022 – Committee considered the draft CIA which was appended to 
that report at Appendix 2.  Committee decided to use the draft CIA as the basis for 
formal consultation. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 Consultation was carried out for a 6 week period, responses to be received by 17 

March 2022.  A copy of the consultation letter is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 None of those consulted required any modification to the CIA as drafted. 
 
3.3 Members are therefore requested to consider approving renewal of the CIA for 

inclusion within the Council’s Licensing Policy, based on the draft attached to and 
limitations set out in the report which Committee considered on 1 February 2022. This 
can be viewed on the Council’s website at: 

DECISION 

The Council has formulated a Cumulative Impact 
Assessment in response to concerns expressed 
by local residents. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
 https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/7019/agenda_item_9_-

_cumulative_impact_assessment_whalley 
 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

 Resources – N/A. 
 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – N/A. 
 

 Political – N/A. 
 

 Reputation – N/A. 
 

 Equality & Diversity – N/A. 
 

5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Consider the consultation responses received about the draft CIA. 
 
5.2 Recommend to Council that the CIA, (detailed at 3.3) be approved to form part of the 

Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216 
 
 
 

Page 8

https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/7019/agenda_item_9_-_cumulative_impact_assessment_whalley
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/7019/agenda_item_9_-_cumulative_impact_assessment_whalley


Page 9



Page 10



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: 12 APRIL 2022 
title: ALCOHOL LICENSING UPDATE 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR  
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the current position in relation to changes in the law introduced 

on a temporary basis due to the pandemic, and to inform Committee of a consultation 
for relaxation of licensing hours to celebrate the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee. 

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

• Community Objectives  }  
 

• Corporate Priorities  } 
 

• Other Considerations  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Government introduced a number of changes to legislation affecting licensed 

premises and other hospitality venues in response to the impact on the public caused 
by the restrictions, and to assist such venues in resuming trade in as safe a manner 
as possible. A number of these changes were temporary and are approaching key 
dates, either by way of expiry or in respect of proposals for temporary renewal or for 
permanent introduction. Included among these provisions are the increase in the 
number of days when licensing activities can be provided under a temporary event 
notice (TEN) in a year, use of external areas adjacent to premises (pavement 
licensing), and temporary permission for off-sales. 

 
2.2 Further, the Government has carried out a consultation on whether on-licensed 

premises should be allowed to remain open until 1am for the sale of alcohol and/or the 
provision of regulated entertainment on Thursday, 2, Friday, 3 and Saturday, 1 June 
2022, to reflect the introduction of an extra Bank Holiday for the Queen’s Platinum 
Jubilee on Friday, 3 June 2022 (the Spring Bank Holiday having moved from Monday, 
30 May to Thursday, 2 June 2022).  

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Alcohol Licensing (Coronavirus) (Regulatory Easements) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2021 came into force in September last year and increased the maximum 
number of days where licensable activities can be provided under a temporary event 
notice (TEN) in a year for a particular premises, from 21 to 26, from 1 January 2022. 
The number of events per year per premises has also increased from 15 to 20. 

 
 These ‘extensions’ apply for the duration of 2022 and 2023, but unless further 

legislation is introduced, will revert to the previous limits on 1 January 2024. There is 
no change to other provisions on TENs, including the requirement for there to be 24 
hours between the end of one TEN and the start of the next. TENs can only be used 

 INFORMATION 

 

The Council aims to be a well managed 
authority and consideration of these issues will 
promote that aim. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



for up to 499 persons (including staff); and 10 clear working days’ notice is required 
(or five clear working days’ notice for a ‘late TEN’, for which there are limits per 
applicant).  

 
3.2 Pavement licences allow furniture such as tables, chairs and umbrellas, to be placed 

on the public highway, such as pavements, or areas of roadway, which have restricted 
vehicle access. The Government issued guidance on a streamlined process for 
pavement licences in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, introduced under the 
Business Planning and Licensing Act 2020. 

 
 However, operators making use of pavement licences granted under the simplified 

procedure should remember that, although they can make use of such licences during 
the coming summer, as it currently stands, those licences will not be allowed to 
continue beyond 30 September 2022. It is, of course, possible that the Government 
could amend this by the introduction of further legislation, for example if they consider 
that the knock-on effects of the COVID-19 pandemic are continuing, but it is unlikely 
there will be any announcement on that until much closer to the time, if at all. Therefore, 
any operator who wants to make continued use of furniture on a highway over winter 
months should consider whether they will be able to apply to the highway authority 
under the lengthier procedure provided for in the Highways Act 1980, requiring 28 
days’ notice, with application s often taking around six weeks (but sometimes longer). 

 
 The grant of a pavement licence, whether under the Business Planning and Licensing 

Act 2020, or under the Highways Act 1980, does not affect any requirement to ensure 
that an area is covered by a premises licence, if sales of alcohol will actually take place 
in that area (for example, if there is a temporary bar).  

 
 The Government has consulted on whether such licences should be made permanent. 

The consultation closed on 11 February 2022 and the Government response is 
awaited.  

 
3.3 30 September 2022 also marks the end of the temporary off-sales permissions granted 

by the Business Planning and Licensing Act 2020. That legislation permitted sales of 
alcohol for consumption off the premises for most premises where the premises licence 
only allowed the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The purpose of the 
change was to make it easier for licensed premises to sell alcohol to customers for 
consumption off the premises in England and Wales, to allow businesses to trade and 
maintain social distancing, where closures and/or social distancing restrictions were in 
force and, thereafter, where demand was lower due to fears of transmission of COVID-
19. However, the Government guidance on the temporary permission made clear from 
the outset that this change would only apply until 30 September 2022. 

 
 It is possible to apply to vary premises licences that only permit sales of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises, to also allow off sales. Therefore, operators who have 
relied on the temporary permission and wish to continue with delivery or click and 
collect services or similar, should consider submitting a variation application to the 
Council by the summer (such a variation would have a 28 day notice period and there 
are representations made, a hearing should be listed approximately four weeks after 
the end of that period. 

 
3.4 The Government has carried out consultation on an extension to hours for the Platinum 

Jubilee, which it brought into force, might reduce the number of TENs that might be 
given in respect of the celebration. Consultation took place on a proposal to allow on-
licensed premises to open until 1am on Thursday, 2, Friday, 3 and Saturday, 4 June 
2022. This extension would not apply to premises licensed only for off-sales; and 

Page 12



opening beyond 1am would still require a TEN (unless permitted by the premises 
licence). 

 
4 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Committee is asked to note the contents of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2022 
title: TAXI LICENSING UPDATE 
submitted by: MARSHAL SCOTT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER - SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of recent developments in relation to the licensing of Hackney 

Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

 Community Objectives -  } 
 

 Corporate Priorities -   } 
 

 Other Considerations -  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Members will recall that the Department for Transport published Statutory Taxi and 

Private Hire Vehicle Standards in July 2020, and that Committee approved the 
amendment of the Council’s conditions and policy where appropriate at the meeting 
on 20 October 2020.  The Department has now indicated that best practice guidance 
is to be updated. 

 
2.2 At its meeting on 1 February 2022, Committee was advised of progress of the Taxis 

and Private Hire Vehicles (Safeguarding and Road Safety) Bill.  This has now received 
Royal Assent. 

 
2.3 HM Revenue and Customs have introduced a requirement for licensing authorities to 

confirm a tax check has been completed by applicants renewing taxi, private hire and 
scrap metal licences. 

 
2.4 A Private Members Bill is proceeding through Parliament amending the Equalities Act 

2010 in respect of provision of transport for disabled persons. 
 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The National Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards issued in 2020 provide statutory 

guidance, which local authorities are required to have regard to in administration of 
their licensing responsibilities.  The last occasion on which best practice guidance on 
administration of the taxi licensing regime was issued was on 2 March 2010.  The 
Department for Transport is carrying out a consultation on introduction of updated 
guidance, which is open from 28 March 2022 to 20 June 2022.  Consultation will take 
place on a number of issues including: 

 

 driver licensing – proficiency; 

 driver licensing – vocational training and assessment; 

INFORMATION 

Consideration of these issues will promote the 
Council’s aim to be a well-managed Council. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 vehicle licensing – tinted windows; 

 vehicle licensing – identification and signage; 

 vehicle licensing – age limits; and 

 enforcement – points based enforcement. 
 
 The consultation document is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
 A further report will be brought to the next Committee on the proposed response by 

the Council. 
 
3.2 The Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles (Safeguarding and Road Safety) Act received 

Royal Assent on 1 April 2022.  Members will recall that this introduces a requirement 
for local authorities to input information to a central database where they have 
suspended, revoked, refused to grant or refused to renew a driver’s licence, and for 
other authorities to have regard to that information in determining application for grant 
or renewal.  Further, if a local authority has concerns about an issue involving a driver 
in their area, who’s licence has been issued by another authority, there is a 
requirement to report those concerns to the issuing authority, who then must have 
regard to those concerns. 

 
3.3 HMRC have introduced a requirement for applicants for renewal of taxi and private hire 

licences and scrap metal licences to carry out an online tax check, and to provide 
evidence of having done so as part of their application.  The Council’s document and 
website have been updated to explain this requirement, effective from 4 April 2022, 
and holders of relevant licences have been notified of the requirement.  Nationally it is 
predicted that it will cost local authorities at least £1.5 million to update their systems 
and processes to accommodate the new rules.  Copies of their information for 
applicants on the Council’s website can be found at Appendix 2. 

 
3.4 The Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles (Disabled Persons) Bill is proceeding through 

Parliament.  This Bill seeks to amend the Equality Act 2010 to provide greater 
protection to all disabled persons using taxis and private hire vehicles.  The Bill has 
passed through the Commons without amendment and is now at the Committee stage 
in the House of Lords. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

 Resources – No implication identified. 
 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – No implication identified. 
 

 Political – No implication identified. 
 

 Reputation – No implication identified. 
 

 Equality & Diversity – No implication identified. 
 
5 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  Committee is asked to note the contents of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
REF: SB/CMS/LICENSING/12 APRIL 2022 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2022 
title: UPDATE ON WHALLEY NIGHT-TIME ECONOMY 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of issues reported by residents of Whalley and actions which 

might be taken to address those issues, and to explain the Council’s role as a 
responsible authority. 

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

 Community Objectives  } 
 

 Corporate Priorities  } 
 

 Other Considerations  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The village of Whalley has a history of a busy night-time economy. Under the previous 

licensing regime (pre implementation of the Licensing Act 2003), there were 4 public 
houses in the centre of the village, together with various registered clubs and dining 
establishments. At one time there were 2 night clubs, one located on George Street 
and one in the premises which were the former village assembly rooms on Accrington 
Road. The premises on George Street closed approximately 50 years ago; the 
premises on Accrington Road remain open. The village has attracted visitors to enjoy 
its night-time economy from surrounding towns and villages over many years. This 
remains the case. 

 
2.2 Since the Licensing Act 2003 came into force’ premises have had the ability to close 

later than what had been more tightly regulated hours under the Licensing Act 1964. 
The earlier legislation involved a closing time for public houses in the Ribble Valley at 
11pm (10.30pm on Sundays) unless a special order of exemption had been granted 
by the Magistrates. Night clubs enjoyed later opening hours provided they were able 
to offer a substantial meal to customers. There are no such restrictions under the 
current regime. 

 
2.3 Over recent years, one of the pubs has closed, and is now a supermarket. There have 

been a number of new premises which have opened, quite often offering a wine bar 
type experience including provision of food for at least part of the day. Some of these 
premises have applied for relatively restricted opening hours, whilst others have 
applied for permission to open until early morning. 

 
2.4 There has always been a mix of residential and commercial premises in the village 

centre. This does give rise to tension and complaints, particularly regarding noise. 
Some of this is reported to emanate from premises themselves. The premises about 
which the greatest number of complaints have been received regarding music volume 
is a premises which was a former registered club, in which events had been held for 
many years. Issues have also been raised with regard to two of the premises which 
have received new licences in recent years.  

INFORMATION 

Consideration of these issues will promote 
the Council’s aim to be a well-managed 
Council. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



 
2.5 Residents also complain about the behaviour of people passing between different 

venues or leaving the village at the end of the night. This includes complaints about 
people shouting, littering, urinating or vomiting in the streets, and some complaints 
relating to taxis. Whilst it may be possible to watch people progress from one premises 
to another, the premises themselves have little control over this behaviour once a 
customer has left the immediate vicinity of the premises. A number of premises do 
have conditions on the licence requiring them to request customers to leave quietly 
and/or to have door staff and/or to implement a dispersal policy. Generally, these 
conditions are adhered to, and complaints regarding behaviour tend to arise when 
customers are away from the premises and the control of the door staff.  

 
2.6 Anti-social behaviour is the subject of many complaints in the village. Some, but not all 

of this, arises from the conduct of customers at licensed premises. However, a 
significant amount of anti-social behaviour occurs well away from licensed premises, 
and earlier in the day/evening than is related to the night-time economy. 

 
2.7 Currently, the police do not report any issues with the conduct of licensed premises in 

the village. As with other cities, towns and villages where there is an active night-time 
economy, the police do carry out unannounced visits to premises, regularly 
accompanied by drug sniffer dogs. The Council’s licensing enforcement staff have 
attended a number of these visits. The police have not sought to review the licence of 
any premises in the village. 

 
2.8 Where reports have been received with regard to noise from premises, the Council’s 

environmental health staff have engaged with those premises. 
 
2.9 At the last meeting of Committee, representations were made inviting the Council to 

become a ‘responsible authority’ under the Licensing Act.  Residents also reported that 
they had attended a meeting with the police, the Police and Crime Commissioner, the 
MP and the Council Leader at which they were advised that they should not initiate 
any licence review. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Council as responsible authority and review of licences 
 

 By section 13za of the Licensing Act 2003, the Council is a responsible 
authority for the purposes of the Act. Section 51(1) provides that, where a 
premises licence has effect, a responsible authority or any other person may 
apply to the relevant licensing authority for review of that licence. Section 53 of 
the Act provides, where a local authority is both the relevant licensing authority 
and a responsible authority in respect of any premises, the authority may apply 
for a review under Section 51 as a responsible authority, and in its capacity as 
licensing authority determine the application. 
 

 The Council, as local authority, has a scheme of delegation to officers under 
part 3(2) of the Constitution. Amongst matters, this authorises the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services to commence or instigate legal or other 
proceedings. Thus, if appropriate evidence is available, a licence review could 
be initiated by officers as a responsible authority.  
 

 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy for 2021-2026 states at section 10 
Licence reviews 
 
The grounds for an application for review of a premises licence must be 
relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives. An Interested Party (eg a 

Page 38



local resident, local organisation and Councillor) or a Responsible Authority 
(including the Council) can initiate a review at any time…. 

 

 The revised statutory guidance under section 182 of the Licensing Act states 
at 11.5: 
 
Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a 
premises licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing 
authority may apply for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at 
premises and wants to intervene early without waiting for representations from 
other persons. However, it is not expected that licensing authorities should 
normally act as responsible authorities in applying for reviews on behalf of other 
persons such as local residents or community groups. These individuals or 
groups are entitled to apply for a review of a licence or certificate in their own 
right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities 
to expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the 
intervention falls within the remit of that other authority.  For example, the police 
should take appropriate steps where the basis for the review is concern about 
crime and disorder or the sexual exploitation of children. Likewise, where there 
are concerns about noise nuisance, it is reasonable to expect the local authority 
exercising environmental health functions in the area in which the premises are 
situated to make the application review. 

 

 At 11.10 of the same guidance, it states: 
 
Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about 
problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence 
holders early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and 
where possible they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps 
they need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond 
to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. 
Cooperation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be 
encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this cooperation. 

 

 Attention has been drawn to a decision of South Ribble Borough Council where 
authority was delegated to their Head of Legal and Democratic Services to act 
as a responsible authority on behalf of the licensing authority. It is noted that 
the South Ribble Statement of Licensing Policy does not specify, in its sections 
regarding reviews, that the Council is a responsible authority; this is so 
specified in the Ribble Valley policy. The delegated authority was then used to 
initiate review of a premises licence for a restaurant which had been suspended 
due to non-payment of an annual fee. No other responsible authority or 
interested party had applied for or supported the application for review. The 
application was principally focused on resolving administrative issues, and in 
fact concluded by adoption of revised agreed conditions (the fee having been 
paid).  This application for review reflects the approach that reviews by the 
Licensing Authority as Responsible Authority occur principally where there is a 
breach of the licence or its conditions.  Very often, where there is alleged to be 
a breach of one or more of the licensing objectives, the review will be more 
properly instigated by one of the other Responsible Authorities or an interested 
party, in accordance with 11.5 of the Guidance. 

 

 Reference was also made to the number or reviews held by various licensing 
authorities.  There have been two applications for review determined by Ribble 
Valley Borough Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee.  The first, in 2011, was 
instigated by the police in relation to the licensing objective of protection of 
children from harm.  The second, in 2014, was initiated by a resident as an 

Page 39



interested party in relation to the licensing objective of prevention of public 
nuisance and crime and disorder. 
 

 Limitation on officer time and resources mean that it has not been possible to 
carry out a full survey of the circumstances of applications for review of licences 
elsewhere in Lancashire.  A review of records as far back as late 2016 shows 
that there were approximately 12 reviews carried out in total in Blackpool, Wyre 
and Fylde.  Of these, only 2, in Blackpool (were initiated by the Council as 
responsible authority).  One case related to the employment of illegal workers 
(discovered in a multi-agency visit) and the other arose after a licence had been 
suspended for failure to pay the annual fee for many years. 
 

 To summarise, the Council is a responsible authority; residents are encouraged 
to apply for review themselves where appropriate evidence exists; a graduated 
approach is recommended; application for review should be submitted, when 
appropriate, by the relevant body or individual in relation to particular licensing 
objectives. 
 

3.2 Early Morning Restriction Order (EMRO): 

 The statutory guidance regarding EMRO’s is as Appendix 1. 
 

 This power was introduced in 2011, to replace provision in relation to Alcohol 
Disorder Zones (none of which had been introduced since their inception in 
2006).  Like their precursor, no Council has adopted an EMRO in over 10 years. 
 

 3 Councils did seek to adopt an EMRO in the three years after their introduction.  
However, following hearings lasting several days, with one or more partners 
sometimes represented by experienced licensing Queen’s Council, none of 
Blackpool, Lambeth or Hartlepool decided to make an EMRO.  In each case, 
representations had been made by the police in support of an EMRO. 
 

 Rather than make an EMRO, the Councils decided to engage with the premises 
in the area concerned.  In the case of Blackpool, the Chief Constable was to 
be contacted to consider an increased level of policing the night-time economy.  
In Lambeth, encouragement was given for a more user friendly manner for 
residents to report matters, and for premises to engage with the proposed 
Business Improvement District (BID).  Hartlepool heard from the police and 
representatives of the local and national licensed trade and decided against an 
EMRO as they were mindful of the impact on businesses. 

 

 The House of Lords Select Committee review of the Licensing Act, carried out 
in 2017, believed it appropriate that no EMRO’s had been introduced and 
recommended that, in due course, the provisions on EMRO’s be repealed.  The 
Government reply noted that an EMRO is a powerful tool, requiring rigorous 
gathering of evidence and extensive consultation before adoption, and that 
there was a small minority of evidence to support the retention of the power. 
 

 Notwithstanding the continued ability to exercise the power, no EMRO’s have 
been adopted, other mechanisms being preferred. 
 

3.3 Late night levies (LNL’s): 

 LNL’s were introduced in 2011 to address the costs of alcohol related crime. 
 

Page 40



 The levy applies to holders of premises licences or club premises certificates 
during the late night supply period (determined locally and between the hours 
of midnight and 6am).  The levy would apply to the whole licensing area (Ribble 
Valley) and all premises licensed to supply alcohol during the late night supply 
period (both on and off sales).  The levy amount is specified nationally based 
on the rateable value of premises.  70% of the levy goes to the police (via the 
PCC) with the balance being retained by the licensing authority.  The police 
can spend the levy anywhere in the county.  The licensing authority is entitled 
to deduct the cost of administering the levy, as prescribed in regulations. 
 

 A Home Office Impact Assessment before its introduction estimated that the 
levy would be viable in 94 licensing authorities in England and Wales.  The 
projected cost (in 2012) was £9,981 for an authority to set up the levy, and 
ongoing annual administration cost of £12,880. 
 

 Amending legislation from 2017 enabling a licensing authority to introduce a 
LNL in only part of its area has not yet been introduced. Therefore, 
notwithstanding that only the village of Whalley is under consideration, 
premises throughout the Ribble Valley, including potentially at least one village 
hall, would be subject to the levy. 
 

 There are currently 10 authorities with a LNL, 6 of which are in London.  Those 
outside London are Liverpool, Nottingham, Newcastle and Chelmsford.  Of 
those, Chelmsford has the smallest population of 180,000 about 3 times that of 
Ribble Valley. 
 

 Whilst no calculation has been carried out on viability, there is the risk that 
operation of the levy in a small authority could be a charge on businesses which 
does not cover the cost of administration, with no positive result in funding the 
PCC  or the authority in addressing underlying issues. 
 

 Where a LNL has been introduced, there is no clear evidence of its impact in 
reducing alcohol related crime.  When introduced about a quarter of premises 
apply for a minor variation of their licence to reduce their permitted hours (no 
fee is payable for this). 
 

3.4 The current position: 

 There has been recent co-operation between licensed premises in Whalley, 
with most of the licence holders attending regular meetings involving the police 
and licensing enforcement staff.  Licensees are also communicating with each 
other much better than previously. 
 

 Over recent weeks, the police and licensing enforcement have not received 
complaints with regard to people behaviour between premises, although 
residents state that Whalley is not like it used to be and there is a lot of litter on 
the streets at weekends before the arrival of the Council’s street cleaning team 
on those days. 
 

 Consideration could be given to encouraging licence holders to invest in a 
scheme such as Best Bar None or Licensing Savi (Security and vulnerability 
initiative).  These are quality markers, reflecting knowledge and commitment of 
licence holders.  There is a cost to licensees to achieve such a standard. 
 

Page 41



 The position does remain fluid, and officers are continuing to monitor, respond 
and advise and act where appropriate.  This will continue as the nights become 
warmer and days are longer. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

 Resources – The Council’s licensing enforcement, environmental health, and 
licensing staff administer and enforce the licensing process in relation to the 
Council’s duties. 

 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – Where complaints are received or evidence 
is gathered, decisions will be made upon the appropriate action in the 
circumstances. 

 

 Political – None. 
 

 Reputation – The Council seeks to promote better lives for the residents of the 
Ribble Valley and an improved environment for businesses. 

 

 Equality & Diversity – None. 
 
5 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 That Committee note the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
REF: SB/EL/CMS/LICENSING/12 APRIL 2022 

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



                SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP MEETING  3.2.2022 

 

MINUTES OF THE RV EVENT SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP 
THURSDAY 3 FEBRUARY 2022 @ 2.00pm 

 

PRESENT: Adrian Harper (Chair) RVBC 
 Matt Riding RVBC 
 Jason Middleton RVBC 
 Catherine Moore RVBC 
 Katharine Collinge RVBC 
 Olwen Heap RVBC 
 Samantha Edwards Fire & Rescue 
 Gary Brook Fire & Rescue 
 Gary Makin Police - Highways 
 Shaun Cannings Police - Highways 
 Liz Mason NWAS 
 Kevin Day Police Sgt, Clitheroe 
   
Gisburne 
Park Estate 

Daniella Davis 
James Haworth – Simplex Safety 

 

   

 ACTION 

APOLOGIES 
 

Apologies were received from Bruce Bensley (LCC Highways) 
 
DEBRIEF – GISBURNE PARK ESTATE BONFIRE 2021 
 
The Chair welcomed Daniella Davis and James Haworth to the meeting. 
 
Daniella reported that aside from the traffic / parking problems that the event had run 
smoothly with no health and safety issues. From reviewing the complaints received they 
were fully aware that improvements need to be made in relation to the traffic 
management and parking. They had requested feedback from both Titan Security and 
Kays Traffic Management company who had both made suggestions.  
 
GPE acknowledged that there was not enough parking for the number of tickets sold, 
and work needed to be done on the car park occupancy.  
 
POLICE 
GM pointed out that the car parking had not been managed properly and that there was 
an obvious misunderstanding as to what had been specified in the Road Closure Order 
and how that would affect the traffic flow for local residents. The cones had had the 
desired effect of no parking on Mill Lane but the complete closure had not allowed 
residents access.  He requested that the Police be involved sooner at any future events. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
MR referred to noise complaints – not particularly from this event – but from others held 
previously. Daniella reported that a decision had been made not to allow fireworks at 
events other than the Bonfire and those already booked for 2022. It was suggested that a 
leaflet drop informing the residents of these events would be a proactive way of keeping 
them informed. 
 
FIRE & RESCUE 
SE had been impressed with the event plan in place for access to emergency vehicles, 
however, was not sure considering the traffic / parking problems experienced that an 
appliance would have got through on the night had it needed to. GB insisted that the 
event must not be based on the numbers that can fit in but on what is safe. 
They suggested that for the event this year (2022) that a ‘during performance’ test would 
take place.  
 
NW AMBULANCE SERVICE 
LM was also concerned about capacity, as the event plan had said 2000 and it was 
apparent that there was nearer 3000 people attended. This would affect the medical plan 
and numbers of personnel the providers need to have on site and whether it should be 
paramedic led or doctor led. NWAS would liaise directly with the medical providers for 
any future events. 
   
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



                SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP MEETING  3.2.2022 

 

GPE PROPOSALS for future events include 
 

  2 car parks – one on the Estate for those travelling form Skipton direction and one 
on the Auction Mart for those travelling from Clitheroe direction 

  Using no waiting cones to prevent cars from parking on Mill Lane (not a full road 
closure) 

  Plan a suitable way of managing Mill Lane 

  Having a temporary pedestrian system on Mill Lane to ensue safe usage for both 
vehicles and attendees 

  Starting the event earlier to help with the flow of traffic and car parking 

  Extending the car parking facilities 

  Working with both security company and traffic management company to 
understand car parking capacities for all car parks and have a car park plan 

  Limiting ticket sales to match car park capacities 

  Look to have activities on earlier in the day to help with staggering arrival times 

  Working with Gisburn Parish Council and perhaps offering local residents 
discounted tickets 
 

Daniella informed the meeting that there were no plans for a festival this year, perhaps 
just a family friendly event at Easter.  
 
Daniella and James left the meeting. 
 
GENERAL ESAG MEETING  
 
The event calendar was considered – both past and future events.  
 

  Legend Fires NW Stages Car Rally – 4 police bikes attending, and NWAS in 
Control. Fire & Rescue would make contact. 

  Jubilee Street parties – to be considered individually as they arise 

  Beatherder – confirmation that this was going ahead this year. The medical 
providers had been in touch with NWAS and the Police had a planning meeting 
scheduled. Adrian suggested that they be asked to attend the next meeting. 

 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the RVSAG will be held on Thursday 12 May 2022 @ 2.00pm in the 
Council Chamber, Clitheroe when representatives of Beatherder would be invited to 
attend. 

 

Should any representative, or substitute, not be able to attend, please contact me 

prior to the meeting. 

 
Meeting closed at 2.50pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Page 52


	Agenda
	2 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Whalley Cumulative Impact Assessment - consideration of consultation responses and recommendation to Council
	Whalley CIA appendix 1

	6 Alcohol Licensing Update
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE

	7 Taxi Licensing update
	Taxi update appendix 1
	Taxi update appendix 2

	8 Update on Whalley Night Time Economy
	Whalley night time economy appendix 1

	9 Minutes of RV Event Safety Advisory Group - 3 February 2022

